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Built as a two-storied, five bay, central hall with open stair house, with a full
length two-storied porch across the front and a story and a half kitchen wing at the
rear with wood shed beyond. The front is approximately 45 feet in length, 20 feet in
depth, the kitchen extending back another 20 feet. These characteristics suggest a
form appropriate to the New York State background of the Monteiths and a conservative,
plain style primarily pre-Classic Revival in treatment, with the major exception of
bold Classic Revival eave detail.

Structurally the building is intact except for the partial removal of two interior
walls and the raising of the kitchen roof from one and a half to a full two stories.
The sub-floor is a heavy hewn sill and girder system, mortised and tennoned with large
joists of surfaced logs. These characteristics and others suggest that the walls above
may include some heavy hewn members too. In the 1920s lath and plaster surfaces were
introduced- (perhaps fortunately) for under this are the original board walls and
ceilingS\Pad\pn some walls the original first layer of wall paper is still in place.

Despite some additions, the original floor plans are quite clear; apparently nine
rooms in all, with three interior end chimneys, two or three fireplaces (one portion
of the frame has yet to be examined). The ground floor rooms were large, rather square,
pleasant portions, three rooms each about 20 x 20 and one other. Omne end fireplace
was in the kitchen, which also had a wainscoting of vertical boards. Upstairs had
four rooms in front and a fifth room above the kitchen; no fireplaces.

By the 1860s the number and distribution of large two-story houses was extensive
throughout western Oregon, yet comparatively few survive. Their number and size
indicated both a rapid development of wilderness and a level of prosperity; their
characteristics indicated a level of craftsmanship and diverse cultural afinities.
Within the general category of two-storied houses were several distinct types
_including the type with a full length, two-storied porch. Of this type the Monteith
“house is the sole survivor in Linn County. Several other counties which once had them

now have none, and in the entire Willamette Valley only approximately half a dozen
remain. Within these few survivors other significant variations are manifest in major
detail or plan features (central hall, no hall), Each surviving example is

culturally and stylistically unique and significant.

—

Of the four major house framing systems, plank (box), balloon, hewn log house,
and hewn frame, prevalent in the pioneer period, the latter is the most rare among
survivors. Characteristics of the Monteith house suggest it may belong or be. closely
allied to this fourth group. Structurally, too, its workmanship is of better than
average quality when the quality of the average was high.

Preservation of the Monteith house has now been initiated, Despite two or more
phases of alteration that the building has experienced, a very good restoration is
attainable. The extent or the examples of elements in place leave only a few aspects
to be interpreted. A more extensive examination during the removal of later materials.
will answer some questions. Because of the building's simplicity, precedent noted in
other Oregon detail of the period can suitably be used to answer remaining questions.
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The major alteration loss occurred with the removal of the original chimneys, the
central staircase and the front porch. In place are much original flooring, almost all
walls, some wall paper, all ceilings, large extents of original siding, much eave, some
windows, wainscot, doors, and the front door frame with side lights. A major detail
which probably can only be resolved through precedent is the stair railing.

Two early photographs, one from the back, one from the front, cover most exterior

detail questions.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Monteith House was the first frame structure built in Albany, It was built and
lived in by the Monteith Brothers who planned and platted the city and played an importan

role in the town's early development,
.became a major shipping point in the 1850s,

in Salem (Mission Mill Complex) who were friends of the Monteiths,
served not only as a residence, but as a store, meeting hall, church and military
headquarters.

Under the leadership of the Monteiths, Albany
The house was a copy of the Jason Lee House
The Monteith House

The house is situated on 640 acres squatted on by Hiram Smead in 1846, He sold his
claim to the land for $400 and a Cayuse pony to brothers Walter and Thomas Monteith in

1848.

The Monteiths had their land surveyed and divided it between them, Walter's

western half was designated as DLC claim #55 and Thomas's eastern half as DLC claim #64,
On the northern portion of both claims they platted a city and named it Albany. They
angled the streets so the one named Washington would cross both thelr claims and where
it crossed built Albany's first frame house,

Foundation timbers were cut and cured in 1848,
the brothers with the assistance of Sam Althouse,
few months while the three went to the California gold fields,

Framing was begun in early 1849 by
Construction was interrupted for a
They returned to complete

the house before hard winter set in, finishing their work in early 1850,

Although built as a home for the Monteith Brothers, it served as a '"community center'
for early Albany.

1850 - Dr. Kendal preached Albany's first sermon in the Monteith Frame House.
1851 - Walter went to San Francisco to purchase a huge supply of goods and the house
was opened as a store until the following year when a store building was constructed,
1853 (Oct.) - The world's first congregation to be organized under the title
"United Presbyterians" met at the Monteith House where they continued to meet until their
church was built in 1861.
1853 (June 29) - St. Peter's Episcopal Church organized at a meeting here where they
continued to meet until they built their church on land donated by the Monteiths.

1856 (Aug.,) - The Monteiths held a meeting of "Free State Men,"

to have been held in their home. An outgrowth of this meeting was the formation of the

Oregon Republican Party in the spring of 1857.

It is believed
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1863 - During the Civil War, Thomas Monteith was commissioned Lt, Col, and full
Col. in 1864. The Monteith house served as headquarters for the 5th Regiment of the
Oregon Volunteers under the command of Thomas Monteith,

1867 - Albany College was built on land donated by Thomas Monteith, For 70 years
Albany College, operated by the Presbyterians, served as one of Oregon's institutions
of higher learning until expanded facilities were opened in Portland in 1938, It is now
known as Lewis and Clark College. Another brother, Rev, William J, Monteith, served as
the first college president.

Due mostly to the foresight and generosity of the Monteiths, Albany progressed
rapidly. By the time the courthouse was finished in 1865, there were facilities for
most civic, cultural, and religious activities. Walter and Thomas had each built new
homes and another Monteith brother, George, now occupied the frame house and operated
a boarding house there. In 1880 the house was moved one lot west where it stands today
remaining on a portion of the original claim. Research has not yet uncovered why the
house was moved.

In 1974 the Monteith house was purchased by the City of Albany from the last of
many landlord-owners. The inside has been abused by a succession of occupants. The
original house, entombed under the abuses and neglect, will be brought back to life
as authentically as possible by the Monteith Historical Society.

The Monteith House is a key property on the fringe of an important historical
area. Community plans call for the establishment of a historical commercial district.
Preliminary work on the project is underway. The Monteith Brothers played a central
role in the early commercial development and their house still stands in its original
relationship to early Albany.
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Evangelical Repository, November 15, 1853
Private notes of Mr. Lee Rohrbough 820 W. 8th, Albany, Oregon

Private notes of Mr. Floyd Mullen 539 W. 5th, Albany, Oregon



